
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

Cabinet Member for Highways, 
Transport and Economic Growth 
Decisions 
 

 
 

Date and Time 
 
Tuesday, 26 March 
2024 
11.00 am 

Place 
 
Woodhatch Place, 11 
Cockshot Hill, 
Reigate 

Contact 
 
Joss Butler 
Joss.butler@surreycc.
gov.uk 
 

Web: 
 
Council and 
democracy 
Surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

 
 

 

 
Cabinet Member 

Matt Furniss 
 

 
 

 
If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format, e.g. large 

print or braille, or another language, please email Joss Butler on 
Joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. 

 
This meeting will be held in public at the venue mentioned above and may be webcast live.  
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the meeting room 
and using the public seating area or attending online, you are consenting to being filmed 
and recorded, and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes. If webcast, a recording will be available on the 
Council’s website post-meeting. The live webcast and recording can be accessed via the 
Council’s website: 

https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
If you would like to attend and you have any special requirements, please email Joss Butler 

on Joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk. Please note that public seating is limited and will be 
allocated on a first come first served basis. 

 

 

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees
https://surreycc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

AGENDA 
 

1   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 

meeting or as soon as possible thereafter  

i. Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  
ii. Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of 

any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 
 

NOTES: 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

• As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, 
of which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s 
spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is 
living as a spouse or civil partner) 

• Members with a significant personal interest may participate in 
the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could 
be reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

2   PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
 

 

a   MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 
The deadline for Members’ questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (20 March 2024). 
 

 

b   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (19 
March 2024). 
 

 

3   PETITION: PLEASE STOP THE CRANLEIGH HIGH STREET 
PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
One petition has been received requesting Surrey County Council to 
“stop the proposed redesign of the Cranleigh High Street as it will 
create increased noise and traffic pollution and will make access to the 
village materially harder”.  
 
1108 people signed this petition. 
 
Full details and the petition response are attached.  
 

(Pages 
5 - 8) 

 
 

Leigh Whitehouse 
Interim Chief Executive 

Published: 18 March 2024



 

 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 
Members of the public and the press may use social media or mobile devices in silent 
mode during meetings.  Public Wi-Fi is available; please ask the committee manager for 
details.  
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at Council meetings.  Please liaise 
with the committee manager prior to the start of the meeting so that the meeting can be 
made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
The use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is 
subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to any Council 
equipment or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile 
devices to be switched off in these circumstances. 
 
 
Thank you for your co-operation. 

 

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
Cabinet and most committees will consider questions by elected Surrey County Council 
Members and questions and petitions from members of the public who are electors in the 
Surrey County Council area.  
 
Please note the following regarding questions from the public: 
 
1. Members of the public can submit one written question to a meeting by the deadline 

stated in the agenda. Questions should relate to general policy and not to detail. 
Questions are asked and answered in public and cannot relate to “confidential” or 
“exempt” matters (for example, personal or financial details of an individual); for further 
advice please contact the committee manager listed on the front page of an agenda.  

2. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed six. 
Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following meeting 
or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion.  

3. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received.  
4. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Chairman or Cabinet 

members may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or nominate another 
Member to answer the question.  

5. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the questioner. 
The Chairman or Cabinet members may decline to answer a supplementary question. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth Decisions 
 
26 March 2024 
 
Title: Please stop the Cranleigh High Street proposed changes 
 
Statement:  
 
We the undersigned petition Surrey County Council to Stop the proposed redesign of the 
Cranleigh High Street as it will create increased noise and traffic pollution and will make access 
to the village materially harder 
 
Justification:  

Having reviewed the finalised proposals for the Cranleigh High Street redesign it is clear that 
they will not give the benefits to the High Street that they are meant to. 
The changes will increase traffic noise and pollution and make it less safe for cyclists and 
pedestrians alike. Further during school run times the high street will become gridlocked. 
The changes are supposed to make Cranleigh a more attractive and safer place to visit. Sadly 
these do not. 
Sadly there are no other opportunities to consult on the proposals so a petition to stop the 
changes and reconsult is all we are left with. 
This is a waste of taxpayers money. 

Submitted by: Philip Chapman 
 
RESPONSE:  
 
The response to this petition sets out: 
 
1 Background. 
2 The proposed changes and their stated benefits. 
3 Addressing concerns over traffic noise, pollution and pedestrian and cycle safety. 
4 Ensuring Cranleigh is more attractive and safer place to visit. 
5 Summary. 
6 Next Steps. 

 
 

1 Background 
 

The Cranleigh public realm scheme was instigated by the County Councillor Liz Townsend in 

2021, following some work undertaken with the Cranleigh Working Party. The Cranleigh 

Working Party is a group of Cranleigh residents including Parish Council members, SMART 

Cranleigh members, Chamber of Commerce, Cranleigh Civic Society and members with 

particular interest in Cranleigh such as Waverley Borough Council employees. 

There was a desire to widen the footways and improve the greening of the village to make it a 
more desirable place to visit and shop. There were three focus areas:- 
 

i. Fountain Square Proposal - A survey in 2021 suggested that 96% of people 
questioned would support the proposal to close the slip road alongside Fountain 
Square and 78% said they would use the High Street more if the access road was 
closed at weekends.  
 

ii. Post Office Proposal - This included pedestrianising the area and removing 
parking. 

Page 5

Item 3



 

iii. Widening the High Street footways, removing some on street parking, removing 
bus laybys and installing speed tables to regulate the speed of vehicles travelling 
along the High Street at all times of the day.  

 
Following the consultation undertaken in November 2022, it was agreed to not pedestrianise the 
Post Office area, to reduce the size of bus laybys rather than remove them fully and not 
undertake public realm works outside the village hall. These significant changes were made as 
a direct response to the feedback provided at the consultation.  
 
Consultation was undertaken in 2021 (initial ideas), November 2022 (concept design) and 
November 2023 (feasibility design). The working party continued to meet up until September 
2023. Cranleigh Youth Council were also consulted via the Parish Council.  
 
The petition was received on 9 November 2023 and finished on 20 February 2024. It received 
1108 signatures. The Project Team met with the petitioner and three of the petition supporters  
on 16 February 2024.  
 

2 The proposed changes and their benefits 
 

i. The proposal to pedestrianise the Fountain Square area (Friday-Sunday) will allow a safe 
area for people to meet and spend time together in the heart of Cranleigh, whilst creating 
a senses of community and wellbeing. We will introduce additional seating and planters 
with planting that helps absorb roadside air pollution, such as cotoneaster. We will be 
upgrading the existing bus shelter to one that includes real time information, with seats 
that are accessible to more people.  
 

ii. Pedestrianising the post office area has been removed from the scheme but proposed 
measures will be taken to improve the drainage along the High Street in this area.  We 
will also look to repair and slightly adjust the existing flower beds to continue to provide a 
space for trees and a lovely carpet of colour during the summer months. 
 

iii. The High Street footways are relatively narrow on the south side of the High Street, as 
many of the shop fronts have wide private forecourts with bollards installed to prevent 
parking on the public footway area. The footways will be widened to provide a safer 
environment for pedestrians and improving access for all. Some on street parking will be 
removed to facilitate this and to continue to ensure the carriageway width is at least 6.5m 
along the High Street to allow two buses to pass each other along this 20mph stretch of 
road.  
 

iv. Raised tables are being proposed to help regulate the speed of traffic along the High 
Street. Currently during rush hour, the traffic is to a greater extent regulated by the 
number of pedestrians which cross at the controlled points. This naturally supports traffic 
speeds within the existing 20mph limit. At other times of the day traffic has the 
opportunity to travel much faster. Speed surveys have been commissioned to ascertain 
the speeds at all times of the day to understand the need for speed tables. Raised tables 
are also being proposed to highlight busy junctions, such as Knowle Lane and Rowland 
Road to improve pedestrian safety making it easier for pedestrians to cross the road and 
giving greater emphasis on the priority of pedestrians. 
 

v. The other main proposal is to remove the mini roundabout at Village Way. SCC has 
undertaken traffic modelling at this junction and the modelling shows that the removal of 
the roundabout will improve the traffic flow in all but one movement. The mini roundabout 

Page 6



is currently under review by our Project Team, due to the potential for a new leisure 
centre to be built along this road subject to planning permission.    
 

The scheme planned for the High Street is being delivered using various streams of prioritised 
external funding - A successful Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) bid to Waverley Borough 
Council,  S106 (developer funded) monies and match funding from Surrey County Council. 

 
 

3 Addressing concerns over traffic noise and pollution 
 
The concerns of some residents are appreciated and therefore it is important to address the 

comments raised within the petition statement. Traffic noise is generally increased when 

vehicles are accelerating and decelerating. Currently traffic speeds along the High Street are 

restricted by the two controlled crossing points, cars parallel parking on the street, and delivery 

lorries. The proposals for Cranleigh High Street include removing some on-street parking as 

well as providing loading bays. These two measures should help remove some of the delays to 

vehicles travelling along the High Street. By narrowing the carriageway at certain points traffic 

speeds are more likely to consistently remain within the 20mph limit. Lowering of traffic speeds 

will also reduce noise levels. Increased planting and trees within the pedestrianised area will 

have the potential to dilute traffic noise and reduce pollutants in the air, thus improving air 

quality.  

 
 
4 Ensuring Cranleigh more attractive and safer place to visit 

 
The proposed designs are focused on making Cranleigh High Street a more attractive and safer 
place for pedestrians to visit. By widening the footways and increasing the number of seating 
areas and areas of greening along the High Street the area will feel less car dominated. The 
proposed improvements to Knowle Lane will improve the safety of pedestrians using the High 
Street as well as cyclists who approach the High Street from the Downs Link. 
Vehicles will still be able to travel along the High Street but at a safe consistent speed, rather 
than accelerating then decelerating to catch the vehicles in front. 
Resurfacing the footways will create smooth footways which are more accessible to those with 
restricted mobility improving functionality as well as looking aesthetically pleasing. 
The installation of at least one new bus stop with modern seating and ‘Real Time Information’ 
will assist those waiting at the bus stops to understand when their bus is due and provide 
protection from weather extremes throughout the year. 

 
 

Summary  

 
For the reasons stated above Surrey County Council consider that the proposed changes will 
not increase noise or pollution or make accessing the village materially harder. There has been 
a significant amount of traffic modelling, consultation with many groups of people representing 
those in Cranleigh as well as opportunities for people to feed back their own ideas and thoughts 
to the Project Team. The plans are in alignment with SCC’s Local Transport Plan 4 giving 
prioritisation of walking and cycling over less sustainable modes through the delivery of making 
walking and scootering more convenient, pleasant, and safe. Improving the footways along the 
High Street, allowing cyclists to cycle along the High Street with less on street parking 
obstructing their pathway, and improving the passenger experience of those who travel by bus 
will help make Cranleigh a more attractive and safer place to visit.  
 
5 Next Steps 

Page 7



 
5.1 Pedestrian and vehicle Surveys 
 
Following the engagement event in November the Project Team have organised numerous 
surveys. These have included speed monitoring, both pedestrian movements and counts 
(looking at use of the pedestrian islands along the High Street), and both vehicle movement and 
counts (looking at right turns off the High Street). 
 
The results from the additional pedestrian surveys and traffic movements will help us identify 
areas where the feasibility design can be improved, and pedestrian movements supported. It 
will also allow us to consider whether we can narrow the carriageway along its entirety or 
whether we do need to keep the turn right / left lanes. Detailed design for the High Street has 
not yet commenced. 
 
 
5.2    Local Cycle and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)  

 
Currently there is a LCWIP under concept design for Cranleigh and the wider Waverley 

Borough. LCWIPs are 10+ year strategic plans that sets out the conceptual plans and priorities 

for cycling and walking infrastructure to encourage more people to choose ‘active travel’ more 

regularly and use the car less often. More information on our plans to improve cycling and 

walking can be found here on the Surrey County Council website Plans to improve walking and 

cycling - Surrey County Council (surreycc.gov.uk) 

The LCWIP proposals have not been developed to a sufficient level to understand how cycling 
improvements could be made to the High Street. The High Street project team are liaising with 
the LCWIP team to ensure we are joined up where possible to prevent potential clashes in the 
future. 
  
 
5.3    Further engagement 
 
The County councillor, Liz Townsend and Director Planning and Placemaking, Tim Crawshaw 
are working together to consider further engagement opportunities.  
 
  
Matt Furniss 
Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Economic Growth 
 
 

Page 8

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/cycling-and-walking/plans
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/cycling-and-walking/plans

	Agenda
	3 Petition: Please stop the Cranleigh High Street proposed changes

